  

BOARD OF ELECTIONS AND REGISTRATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES – 14 September 2023   
 
Board members present: Maurice Hurry, Michele Crochetiere, Kevin Evans and Chad Word

Staff present: Milton Kidd, Tesha Green, Ann Bolen, Crystal Danley-Bridges, Cameron Fairley, Heather James and Philbert Smith

Legal counsel present: Leslie Suson


Call to Order

Mr. Hurry called the meeting to order at 5:00PM.  


Approval of Agenda

Mr. Hurry requested a motion to approve the meeting’s agenda.  Mrs. Crochetiere made the motion and Mr. Word seconded.  The agenda was approved unopposed.


Approval of Minutes from August 10 and August 28 Board Meetings

Mr. Hurry requested a motion to approve the minutes from the August 10th and August 28th board meetings. Mr. Word made the motion and Mr. Evans seconded.  Both sets of minutes were approved unopposed.


Citizen Comment

There were no citizen comments.


Felon Hearings

Mrs. Green informed the board that no felon letters were received at the time of this board meeting.


Office Operations 

Mr. Kidd announced that qualifying for the November General Election was held last month, adding that an additional special called meeting was held on August 28 to reopen qualifying for a vacant seat for the 3rd Ward in Villa Rica.  He explained that this election will be held in conjunction with the November municipal election and this vacancy will be featured on the same ballot.  He advised that two individuals have qualified for this seat and a full list of qualified candidates can be found on the department’s website.  In the same meeting, he explained, the board voted to accept a polling place change for the 2024 presidential election season, moving the precinct of First Baptist Douglasville to St. Theresa’s Catholic Church, explaining that the change will not take place until the March 12 Presidential Preference Primary.  He announced that all affected voters will be notified by mail immediately following the November Municipal Election.

Mr. Kidd explained that Mr. Unvala has been working with the Secretary of State’s ballot builders to produce ballot proofs for the upcoming Municipal Election.  He expects the proofs to be ready next week, noting that this process serves as the final check to ensure everything is produced correctly on the ballot before the Logic and Accuracy Testing begins and ballots are produced.

Mrs. Bolen explained that Early Voting Poll Worker training will be held on September 25 from 8:00am-12:00pm.  Election Day Poll Worker training will be held on October 20th with a morning and afternoon session and a final, make up training on October 21st.

Mrs. Crochetiere sought clarification regarding which election this training is for.

Mr. Kidd explained that the training is for the November Municipal Election.

Mrs. Green announced that the office worked with the Board of Commissioners to issue a proclamation declaring September 19th as voter Registration Day in Douglas County to coincide with National Voter Registration Day.  The office will be holding registration activities outside of the Douglas County Courthouse the following week with staff stationed alongside the Douglas County mobile voting unit on Monday, Wednesday, Thursday, and Friday from 10:00am to 2:00pm and from 9:00am to 4:00pm on Tuesday.  She explained that this is an opportunity for the public to update their address, check their registration status and receive any supplemental information.  Mrs. Green also added a reminder that the voter registration deadline for the upcoming Municipal Election is October 10th.

Mrs. Green explained that the office will be participating in both weekends of Douglas County’s September Saturdays on September 23rd and September 30th.  This is a festival held by the county and the office will be conducting voter registration activities and equipment demonstrations.

Mrs. Green read a memo from Blake Evans, the Secretary of State’s Elections Director, concerning list maintenance activities. 
I want to provide an update on list maintenance activities that are occurring and will be occurring over the next 3 months.
August 2023
NGE (Inactive Status for 2 General Elections) – We mailed 191,473 notices to records that have been in Inactive Status for 2 General Elections. The clock for that mailing is expiring soon, and any of the records that have not responded to the notice or had other activity will be canceled by the system.
No Contact Mailing – There were 183,584 No Contact notices mailed statewide to records with Active status that have not had activity for 5 calendar years. These voters were given 40 days to respond to the notice. If they do not, they will be moved to Inactive status. Their clock will expire on September 20th.
September 2023 
ERIC Cross State Mailing – On September 11th, we anticipate mailing about 82,077 Cross State notices to voters who appear to have recent activity on another ERIC-member state's voter roll or driver services list. Our office will mail these notices. You can find an estimate of the number of notices for your county by clicking on this file 
NCOA Out of State Mailing – You will be receiving NCOA notices for voters who have filed an Out of State change of address with USPS. If the address was an out of state address, then they will be sent one of our Out of State notices. Statewide, we anticipate sending 102,340 notices. The target mail date for these notices is the week of September 18th. 
NCOA Out of County Mailing – You will be receiving NCOA notices for voters who have filed an Out of County change of address with USPS. These notices will be sent to you at the same time as the NCOA Out of State notices. Statewide, we anticipate mailing about 91,513 of these NCOA Out of County notices. The target mail date for these notices is the week of September 18th. 
In State Updates Mailing – We will be mailing postcards to any voters who have more recent activity at DDS and a different residential or mailing address on file DDS compared to our voter registration list. These postcards will prompt voters to go to MVP to verify their information and submit a request for any necessary updates. These voters will not be put on a clock. Statewide, we anticipate mailing about 46,000 of these postcards to voters. We will provide estimates for your county soon.
December 2023 
NCOA Within County Mailing – After 2023 Municipal Elections and before the 90-day list maintenance federal blackout window begins, we will conduct our NCOA Within County Mailing. We will provide more information about this in the coming weeks.


Mr. Word asked if he would be able to receive a copy of that notice.

Mr. Kidd informed him that he would be able to do that.

Mr. Hurry asked for clarification regarding the time window voters have to respond to these various notices.

Mrs. Green explained that it is a 30- or 40-day period to respond to notices starting from the day they are mailed out.

Mr. Word asked for the status on the NGE clock.

Mrs. Green explained that the time to respond expired on September 7th and that the No Contact notices will expire on September 20th.

Mr. Word asked if the numbers for Douglas County were available.

Mrs. Green assured him she would deliver those later.


Old Business

Mrs. Bolen announced that Early Voting will take place only at the Douglas County Courthouse from October 17th to November 4th from 8:30am to 6:00pm with two days of Saturday Voting from 9:00am to 5:00pm on October 21st and October 28th.  She noted that since it’s a municipal election, only fourteen polling locations will be open in Douglasville and one in Villa Rica on Election Day.

Mr. Kidd announced that sample ballots have been distributed to both municipalities and these sample ballots can be found on the website at celebratedouglascounty.com 

Mr. Kidd announced that he met earlier in the afternoon with the school superintendent to discuss the 2024 presidential election season and the impact it will have on Douglas County Schools as well as the possible relocation of a second election day polling location. He explained that an update will be provided at the following monthly board meeting.

Mr. Kidd requested Mr. Hurry’s signature regarding the Board’s decision to relocate First Baptist Douglasville to St. Theresa’s Catholic Church.  Mr. Hurry was not present for the August 28th Special Meeting.

Mrs. Crochetiere noted that physical site assessments were discussed during the previous monthly board meeting and asked if there has been any follow-up from the Secretary of State’s office.

Mr. Smith explained that there has been no follow-up regarding the Department of Homeland Security’s site assessment.



New Business

Mr. Kidd announced that the first order of New Business concerns voter challenges to be presented by Mr. Word.

Mr. Word explained that as the newest member of the board, he has been trying to understand the processes involved in voter roll maintenance.  He explained that through his own research, he has discovered deceased individuals that appear on the active voter list for Douglas County and the appropriate step would be to challenge these individuals.

Mr. Kidd explained that all board members and staff have a packet containing information provided by Mr. Word as well as their status reflected in GARVIS, the last time the individual participated in an election or petition as well as their audit history within GARVIS.

Mr. Kidd also explained that the voter challenge procedure the board voted on to adopt as official policy is included in the packet.  He explained that, per those policies, a hearing must be held for everyone that is challenged and any challenged voter may defend themselves.  Mr. Kidd went on to explain that in odd numbered years, the Secretary of State performs list maintenance activities through confirmation notices.  These notices are sent to voters who have not been active.  He explained that several of the deceased voters were currently involved in this confirmation notice and were due to be made inactive or canceled.  

Mr. Kidd advised the board that holding voter challenge hearings for deceased voters is an inefficient use of resources, instead advising the board to issue its own confirmation notice to identified deceased voters to utilize the established confirmation notice process.

Mr. Evans asked for clarification regarding extenuating circumstances that would cause a notice to be returned despite the individual not being deceased.

Mr. Kidd explained that these processes and procedures do work as a system.  He noted there have been incidents where voters have been deleted from the rolls but have been able to re-register at the office.  He explained that most of the roll is handled by the state issued confirmation notices but added that the board has the authority to issue its own notices.

Mrs. Suson added that it would be worthwhile for staff to explain to the board the process involved in removing deceased voters from the rolls.

Mr. Word requested further clarification.

Mrs. Suson cited OCGA §21-2-231 explaining that the registrar of vital statistics sends monthly reports to the Secretary of State’s office who then removes the individuals from the rolls.

Mrs. Green explained that daily, vital records are reviewed and either canceled or marked as deceased.  These records come from the Secretary of State.  She added that, monthly, the Probate Court sends a list of deceased individuals to the office that are also reviewed.  

Mr. Word asked for clarification regarding instances when individuals were not caught by these checks.

Mr. Kidd explained that is what is currently being discussed but explained that both of those focus on either Douglas County or the State of Georgia.  Citing the fourth entry, he explained that she passed away out of the State of Georgia.  He explained that eventually a confirmation notice will be sent, and that voter will be removed, but such individuals may not be noticed if they die outside of Georgia.  Mr. Kidd requested the board to vote on a process to issue confirmation notices for such individuals rather than holding individual hearings for deceased individuals.  He concluded by noting that everyone in the provided list’s last contact with the office has been before their death, showing they are not participating in the elections process.

Mrs. Suson clarified that the board cannot remove individuals without verifying information.

Mr. Word asked if Douglas County has received notice of death concerning the provided individuals for this meeting.

Mrs. Green explained that no notice of death has been received, however several of them are currently involved with the State’s existing confirmation notice process.

Mr. Word noted that it appears that the existing process is not perfect and asked legal counsel if the board has any authority to discuss this with the office of vital records.

Mrs. Suson wanted to clarify that seven of the individuals in the report have been involved in the confirmation notice process.  She explained that these are concerning deaths that occur outside of the state of Georgia.

Mr. Hurry requested clarification regarding the confirmation process, noting that it takes up to seven years to be removed from the rolls and that this process can move slowly.  

Mrs. Crochetiere agreed, stressing the importance of accuracy and implementation of a process to supplement the Secretary of State’s office.

Mr. Word asked if voter challenges could be combined with a monthly board meeting.

Mr. Kidd explained that each voter challenge requires a notice to be issued within 3 days of the challenge, based on the new voter challenge process.  He explained that there are several timing issues with each individual voter challenge and that would place strain on resources to handle each one.  He added that the board can vote on policies and procedures, and he is advising the board to establish a particular policy.

Mr. Word asked for further clarification of the confirmation notice process, asking if these letters would be mailed to the last known address of the deceased, and which clock this would start if it were not returned.

Mrs. Green explained that the process moves from active, to inactive, to canceled.

Mr. Word noted that he believed this new policy makes sense as a supplement to existing protocols.

Mrs. Suson added that it would be a good policy to implement, but she added that she needs more time to review code as it relates to actions after the 40-day clock.

Mr. Kidd advised the board to take a vote to table this item until the next meeting for legal counsel to review ramifications for this policy.

Mr. Word made the motion to table this item until the next meeting and Mrs. Crochetiere seconded.  The board voted 4-0 in favor of tabling the decision to implement new policy concerning deceased voters until the next board meeting.

Mr. Kidd added that he will be asking the board o to hold a special called meeting to address other policy concerns the board should consider for its own governance.  He noted that the board has been operating informally over recent years and some structure should be added for board members and office staff.



Board Member Concerns

Mrs. Crochetiere informed the board that a Douglas County citizen reached out to her asking about the High School Ambassador program and how interested students can participate in the elections process.

Mrs. Bolen explained that interested students can reach out to the office, adding that roles are filled for this current election.

Mr. Kidd explained that the student ambassador program is a part of the code section that allows students to serve as poll workers in precincts.  The office works with high school guidance counselors during county-wide elections to recruit students for election day.  He added that with the exception of the Presidential Preference Primary, schools are closed on election day, so students referred to the program can receive additional credit for working as well as being compensated monetarily.


Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:57pm
	

